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STATE OF INDIANA

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA)

Request for Proposals 10-SEP05-4
The Indiana Office of Energy Development

Solicitation For:

INDIANA STATE ENERGY PROGRAM (SEP)

MARKET FIVE 

Promote the Use of Green and Renewable Energy Generation Facilities, Products, and Its Supply Chain for the Purpose of Reducing Greenhouse Gases
Response Due Date:  August 24, 2010

SECTION ONE

GENERAL INFORMATION AND FUNDING OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION

1.1 INTRODUCTION

The Indiana Office of Energy Development (IOED) is issuing this Request for Proposal (RFP) for a competitive loan program with the Indiana Office of Energy Development (IOED) that encourages the purchase or financing of equipment that will provide for the rapid deployment of certain alternative and renewable energy technologies. This RFP details the submission requirements of the loan program established under Market 5 of the Indiana State Energy Program (SEP) titled Promote the Use of Green and Renewable Energy Generation Facilities, Products, and Its Supply Chain for the Purpose of Reducing Greenhouse Gases (GHG) (the Program).  Funding for this opportunity has been allocated to the IOED from the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009.  It is the intent of IOED to solicit responses to this RFP in accordance with the project objectives, the proposal preparation section, and specifications contained in this document.  This RFP is being posted to the IOED website http://www.in.gov/oed/ for downloading.  Neither this RFP nor any response (proposal) submitted hereto are to be construed as a legal offer.
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA)

The ARRA appropriates funding for DOE to issue formula-based funding under SEP.  DOE is responsible for overseeing and managing the allocation and the use of ARRA funds distributed to the various states. The results achieved with SEP ARRA funds, in addition to the rapid deployment of alternative and renewable energy technologies, will be assessed to consider the following performance metrics: jobs created, funds leveraged, energy (kwh/therms/gallons/BTUs/etc) saved, GHG emissions reduced (CO2 equivalents), and air pollutants reduced.

1.2 PURPOSE OF THE RFP

The purpose of this RFP is to solicit applications for the Program, which establishes a flexible financing program to encourage the purchase or financing of equipment that provides for the rapid deployment of alternative and renewable energy technologies that will serve to promote domestic security by limiting our dependence on foreign oil, and creating new clean means of generating, storing and implementing clean technologies for commercial and consumer purposes.  By providing low-cost equipment financing, the Program accelerates the deployment of alternative and renewable energy technologies that will contribute to the reduction of use of any one, or collectively among all, of the categories of non-renewable energy by at least 50%.

The Program also focuses on the creation of jobs, the promotion of speedy project completion, the realization of measurable energy efficiency savings, and greater statewide energy diversification. It is intended to match the State’s ongoing environmental goals with the urgent imperative of economic relief and the strategic goal of long-term, sustainable economic growth through deployment of new energy technology.  Building upon its existing infrastructure in renewable energy, Indiana will use its Program funding to work towards DOE’s national efficiency and diversification goals of ten percent (10%) of electricity supply from renewable sources by 2012 and twenty-five percent (25%) by 2025.  Ultimately, Indiana intends to lead the market transformation toward a more environmentally friendly economy by strategically allocating our assets. 

Loans or grants (awards) under the Program will be made, consistent with the SEP, and in a manner which is determined to be in the best interests of the State of Indiana.  The awards will be funded through ARRA and are subject to the reporting and operational requirements of the legislation.  Applicants to this RFP (Applicants) must acknowledge their ability to comply with and their responsibility for all record keeping and reporting requirements defined by the Federal Government for ARRA funds.   Reports required by Federal agencies and the State of Indiana shall include, but will not be limited to, performance indicators of program deliverables, information on costs and progress against timelines.  Specific Federal reporting requirements are listed in this RFP and can also be found at http://www.federalreporting.gov/, when available. Any Applicant awarded a Financing (Financing Recipient) is expected to adhere to all reporting requirements.

Additionally, each award provided from ARRA funds is subject to review and examination by appropriate federal or state entities.   Failure to comply with the terms, conditions and requirements of ARRA may result in the recapture of the balance of award funds.  

1.3 TYPE OF AWARD

The State intends to make awards to one or more Applicants responding to this RFP.  All award Recipients will be required to comply with the provisions identified in the RFP and the financing documentation package, which is attached hereto as Attachment A (Financing Documents).  IOED intends to award grants but may in its discretion require that an award be in the form of a loan if necessary for the success of the project, or to be more consistent with Indiana’s long-term strategic renewable and alternative energy objectives.

The terms of any award under this RFP shall be as set forth in the definitive, legally-binding Award Documents to be entered into by and between the IOED and each Recipient.  If a loan is awarded, it will be pursuant to terms substantially similar to those set forth in RFP 09-SEP05-01. Applicant may be required to first purchase and install any equipment proposed to be financed with award proceeds prior to seeking reimbursement from the IOED.  It is the policy of IOED to fund approved disbursement requests within approximately sixty (60) days.

1.4 ESTIMATED FUNDING

The IOED anticipates awarding the remaining funding available for this Market under this RFP, subject to the availability of funds and the quality of applications received.  The maximum award amount under the Program shall not exceed the lesser of (i) 50% of the total project cost; or (ii) $5,000,000 per project.  All Award Documents must be executed by September 30, 2010.  All award proceeds must be disbursed to Recipients by September 30, 2011 (Completion Date).  Time is of the essence in the completion of required award documents. Therefore, any Applicant whose Project (as defined in Section 1.7) is unlikely to be able to be completed within the designated period for document completion and disbursement of proceeds may be rejected.  Applicants will be responsible for any closing costs or reasonable legal fees incurred by IDOE to complete the award documents.  This RFP is being issued contemporaneously with Request for Proposals 10-SEP04-4 for Market 4 of the SEP Plan (“Market 4 RFP”).  Applicants that qualify may apply under both this RFP and the Market 4 RFP provided that they specify which RFP best achieves the Applicant’s objectives.  This RFP focuses more specifically on reducing the end-use of non-renewable sources of energy while the Market 4 RFP focuses more specifically on accelerating renewable energy products to market.  IOED further reserves the right to reject all proposals and increase awards to current awardees if necessary to obligate all funds by September 30, 2010.
1.5 LEVERAGE

A criterion for award under this RFP is the amount of additional financial support provided by the Applicant or others, other than any Financing awarded hereunder, to support the proposed Project.  An Applicant must leverage directly or indirectly of at least one dollar of additional financial support for each dollar of award proceeds.  The Applicant shall be reimbursed a maximum fifty percent (50%) of eligible equipment costs unless the IOED determines, to the extent allowed by the DOE, that waiving the matching requirement is in the best interest of the State because (i) the administrative costs associated with monitoring a match are too great in light of the scope of the Project, (ii) the other expenditures of the Applicant, while for non-eligible expenditures, insure that the award is being leveraged, although partially indirectly, at least on a 1:1 basis, and (iii) the success of the Project would not be impaired by waiving the matching requirement.
1.6 ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS

Eligible Applicants include private, for profit entities establishing or expanding their presence in the State of Indiana.  The following are NOT eligible to apply for this RFP: Nonprofit Organizations, Units of Local Government, Educational Institutions, State Agencies, Commercial Facilities, Utilities, Industries, Indian Tribes or Public Entities.

1.7 PROJECT OBJECTIVES

In order to be eligible for an award under the Program, an Applicant’s submitted project (Project) must meet the following requirements:

· The Project establishes, expands or re-equips a manufacturing facility for the production of global energy technologies and products that increase energy efficiency and reduces the demand for imported oil and fossil fuels including: property (including individual component parts thereof) (a) specifically designed to be used to produce energy from renewable sources including wind and solar 
(b) specifically designed to be used to produce more energy efficient machines, equipment and engines which would make substantial contributions to transportation fuel efficiency or energy efficiency and conservation by more effectively using conventional and available energy sources (referred to collectively as “Renewable Energy Products”).The Project must utilize award funds to purchase or finance equipment critical to the establishment, expansion and re-equipping of its manufacturing facility for Renewable Energy Products, whose deployment will reduce energy use versus traditional or older model products by up to 50% relative to current industry standard, based on the energy source being replaced.

· The Renewable Energy Products manufactured by the Applicant will contribute to the reduction of the end-use of non-renewable sources of energy and a corresponding overall reduction in carbon footprint.

· The receipt of an award under this Program will have a substantial positive impact on the Applicant’s ability to complete the Project or to obtain additional financing to complete the Project or more quickly proceed with the Project, which will accelerate the creation of jobs and the availability, widespread use and acceptance of Renewable Energy Products in Indiana and elsewhere.  

· Substantially all of the products manufactured, produced or assembled at the Project location will be Renewable Energy Products.  The Applicant must also demonstrate corporate focus and support for furthering the use and market acceptance of Renewable Energy Products.

· The Project will result in the creation of net new full-time employment positions for Indiana residents.  

· The Applicant must demonstrate that it will be able to expend all award funds prior to the Completion Date.

· The Project must have documented support from the local community where the Project will be located, including financial support if applicable.

· The Applicant (or the Applicant’s parent or affiliated company) must have a strong track record of successful operations and project implementation with respect to the anticipated creation of jobs and the production of Renewable Energy Products.

· Applicant must be fully compliant with all Indiana Department of Workforce Development and Indiana Department of Revenue requirements and must demonstrate the company’s commitment to investing in its workforce. 
· Applicant, upon request from IOED, must be able to demonstrate that its project will meet the environmental standards applicable to federal funding in the timeframe allotted by the DOE. 

· Applicants must demonstrate the availability of any additional capital investment necessary to complete the Project, including funding from public and private sources and incentives from local, state and federal entities.  Awards to Applicants may be contingent upon securing such additional funding.

1.8 PROHIBITED USE OF FUNDS

In accordance with federal regulations, SEP applicants are prohibited from using SEP financial assistance:

· For construction, including construction of mass transit systems and exclusive bus lanes, or for the construction or repair of buildings or structures;

· To purchase land, a building or structure or any interest therein;

· To subsidize fares for public transportation;

· To subsidize utility rate demonstrations or State tax credits for energy conservation or renewable energy measures; or

· To conduct or purchase equipment to conduct research, development or demonstration of energy efficiency or renewable energy techniques and technologies not already commercially available.

· Funds may not be used for gambling establishments, aquariums, zoos, golf courses or swimming pools as mandated by the ARRA.

1.9 SELECTION PROCESS

Proposals must be submitted to the IOED no later than 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time on August 24, 2010.  Once the Proposals are received and the IOED determines all appropriate documentation has been submitted, IOED shall convene an advisory group comprised of representatives from various state agencies.  The advisory group shall review all of the Proposals deemed complete in accord with the criteria set forth herein (Section 4.2).  If additional documentation or further investigation is necessary for IOED to recommend awarding a Proposal, IOED will request such documentation or conduct such investigation prior to making an award.  IOED will select Proposals for awards and submit a final list of approved Proposals to the DOE for confirmation, including where necessary confirmation of NEPA compliance or the existence of a categorical exemption from NEPA by DOE.  IOED reserves the right to reject Proposals which are incomplete or not in accord with the SEP objectives.

1.10 PROPOSAL CLARIFICATIONS AND DISCUSSIONS, AND DOCUMENTATION PROCESS AND PROCEDURES

1.10.1
IOED reserves the right to request clarifications on proposals.  IOED also reserves the right to conduct proposal discussions, either oral or written, with Applicants.  These discussions could include requests for additional information, requests for cost, equipment information, financial information, project information or information necessary to satisfy the requirements set forth at Section 2.3, etc.  IOED will provide equivalent information to all Applicants which have been chosen for discussions.  Discussions, along with negotiations with responsible Applicants may be conducted for any appropriate purpose.  The IOED will schedule all discussions.  Any information gathered through oral discussions must be confirmed in writing.  

1.10.2
The Award Documents contain a sample grant agreement.  Any changes that the Applicant considers mandatory for Applicant to receive and expend an award must be submitted with its Proposal and identified as mandatory changes.  The IOED will reserve the right to disqualify an Applicant if any mandatory changes are not in the best interest of the State of Indiana or are prohibited by state law or guidelines as determined by the Indiana Attorney General’s Office.  Any requested changes to the Award Documents must also be submitted, and the IOED reserves the right to negotiate mutually acceptable changes during the period of negotiations.  To reiterate, it’s the IOEDs strong desire to not deviate from the attached sample grant agreement.

1.10.3
The IOED may desire to only award a portion of the amount requested by an Applicant in support of its Project and therefore may request additional information or feedback from an Applicant regarding the effect a reduced award may have on the projected impact and success of the Project.

1.10.4
IOED may request a site visit to the Project location or the Applicant’s place of business to assess the effect of the equipment proposed to be purchased and the Project to aid in the evaluation of the Applicant’s proposal.  A failure to promptly allow the State to conduct a site visit may delay a proposed award or otherwise disqualify an Applicant from additional consideration.

1.10.5
IOED reserves the right to award an Applicant contingent upon the Applicant’s satisfaction of certain conditions, including but not limited to, receipt of represented funding commitments, the provision of additional information to IOED confirming representations set forth in Applicant’s Proposal and securing a guaranty from Applicant’s parent company, where deemed appropriate and applicable. 

SECTION TWO

APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION

2.1 QUESTIONS/INQUIRY PROCESS

All questions/inquiries regarding this RFP must be submitted in writing by the deadline of 5:00 p.m., energyprojectideas@oed.in.govEastern Standard Time on August 16, 2010.  Questions/Inquiries may be submitted via email [] and must be received by the IOED by the time and date indicated above.  

Following the question/inquiry due date, IOED personnel will compile a list of the questions/inquiries submitted by all Applicants.  The responses will be posted to the IOED website according to the RFP timetable established in Section 2.6.  Only answers posted on the IOED website will be considered official and valid by the State.  No Applicant shall rely upon, take any action, or make any decision based upon any verbal communication with any State employee.

Inquiries are not to be directed to any staff member of the IOED.  Such action may disqualify Applicant from further consideration for an award resulting from this RFP.

If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP, or if additional information is necessary for a clearer interpretation of provisions of this RFP prior to the due date for proposals, an addendum will be posted on the IOED website.

2.2 PROPOSALS FOR SUBMISSION

All proposals must be received at the address below by the IOED no later than 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time on August 24, 2010.  Applicants are cautioned about sending proposals via mail; no exceptions will be made for applications received by IOED after this date and time.  Each Applicant must submit eight (8) complete copies of the proposal and one complete copy on CD ROM.  Proposals shall not exceed 10 pages in length, exclusive of all exhibits and attachments and 40 pages in length, including exhibit and attachments.

The proposal must follow the format indicated in Section Two of this document.  Unnecessarily elaborate brochures or other presentations, beyond those necessary to present a complete and effective proposal, are not desired. All proposals must be addressed to:

Indiana Office of Energy Development

One North Capitol Avenue, Suite 600

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

All proposal packages should be clearly marked with the RFP number, due date, and time due. Any proposal received by the IOED after the due date and time will not be considered.  Any late proposals will be returned, unopened, to the Applicant upon request. All rejected Proposals not claimed within 30 days of the Proposal due date will be destroyed.

No more than one proposal per Applicant may be submitted per RFP. 

The State accepts no obligations for costs incurred by Applicants in anticipation of being awarded a Financing.

2.3 NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT REQUIREMENTS

All Projects receiving financial assistance from the DOE under this SEP RFP must comply with DOE's regulations adopted under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969- 42 U.S.C. Section 4321 et seq. (NEPA).  DOE's NEPA regulations may be found at 10 C.F.R. Part 1021.  

Applicants are encouraged to submit Proposals that will be determined by the DOE to (1) already be determined to be NEPA compliant; or (2) be categorically excluded under 10 C.F.R. 1021.410(b).  Generally, to qualify as categorically excluded, the Project must fit within the class of actions listed in Appendix A or B of DOE's NEPA regulations; there must be no extraordinary circumstances that may affect the environmental effects of the project; and the project must not be connected to other actions with potentially significant impacts.  The DOE will make the final determination of whether a Project is already NEPA compliant or is categorically excluded.  

To be responsive, Applicants must complete DOE Form EF1 or provide relevant information provided by or submitted to a federal government agency and utilized for a determination of NEPA compliance.  A copy of Form EF1 is attached as Attachment B.  To facilitate the DOE's prompt consideration of Projects, applicants are encouraged to include verification that the equipment will be used at an existing facility, that the proposed equipment will not omit hazardous pollutants or otherwise require a hazardous or special permit to operate, and any other relevant and responsive information related to equipment or operation of the Project or Project site as possible.

Given the tight SEP funding deadlines, the State of Indiana is not able to consider Projects which have not yet been assessed as NEPA compliant by DOE or which cannot be categorically excluded by DOE quickly.  Applicants are strongly encouraged to familiarize themselves with DOE’s NEPA Requirements.  Questions about DOE’s NEPA requirements and evaluation process should be directed to DOE at 1-800-472-2756.
2.4 COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

Responses to this RFP serve as a representation by the Applicant that it has no current or outstanding criminal, civil, or enforcement actions initiated by the State, and it agrees that it will immediately notify the State of any such actions. The Applicant also certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently in arrears in payment of its taxes, permit fees or other statutory, regulatory or judicially required payments to the State.  The Applicant agrees that the State may confirm, at any time, that no such liabilities exist, and, if such liabilities are discovered, that State may exclude the Applicant’s Proposal from further consideration under this RFP.  

Additionally, all Applicants must execute the Assurances and Certifications documents (shown on pages 20-32).

2.5 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

The Applicant specifically agrees to comply with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq. and 47 U.S.C. 225).

2.6 SUMMARY OF MILESTONES

The following timeline is only an illustration of the RFP process.  The dates associated with each step are not to be considered binding.  Due to the unpredictable nature of the evaluation period, these dates are commonly subject to change.  At the conclusion of the evaluation process, all Applicants will be informed of the evaluation team’s findings.

Key RFP Dates:

	Activity
	Date

	Issue of RFP
	August 10, 2010

	Deadline to Submit Written Questions
	August 16, 2010

	Response to Written Questions/RFP Amendments
	August 18, 2010

	Submission of Proposals
	August 24, 2010 (4:00 p.m.)

	The dates for the following activities are target dates only.  These activities may be completed earlier or later than the date shown.

	Proposal Evaluation
	August 26, 2010

	Preliminary Award
	August 27, 2010


2.7 CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

Applicants are advised that materials contained in proposals are subject to the Access to Public Records Act (APRA), IC 5-14-3 et seq.  To the extent feasible and permissible by law, the IOED will honor an applicant’s request that confidential information submitted to IOED will remain confidential.  IOED will treat information as confidential only if: (i) the information is, in fact, protected confidential information such as trade secrets or privileged or confidential commercial or financial information; (ii) the information is specifically marked or identified as confidential by the applicant; (iii) the information is segregated and placed in a separate appendix to the application; and (iv) no disclosure of the information is required by law, as determined by IOED or the Public Access Counselor, or by judicial order.  If the application results in an award, the honoring of confidentiality of identified data shall not limit the right of IOED to disclose the details and results of the award to the general public.

SECTION THREE
PROPOSAL PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS
3.1 GENERAL

To facilitate the timely evaluation of proposals, a standard format for proposal submission has been developed and is described in this section. All Applicants are required to format their proposals in a manner consistent with the guidelines described below:

· Each item must be addressed in the Applicant’s proposal. 

· The Transmittal Letter must be in the form of a letter. Proposals must be organized under the specific section titles as listed below.

By submitting information, the Applicant will be certifying that an appropriate representative of the Applicant has reviewed the Proposal for the thoroughness and correctness of any/all material information supplied with the Proposal.  

3.2 TRANSMITTAL LETTER

The Transmittal Letter must address the following topics except those specifically identified as “optional.”


3.2.1
Agreement with Requirements listed in Section 1

The Applicant must explicitly acknowledge understanding of the general information presented in Section 1 and agreement with any requirements/conditions listed in Section 1.

The Applicant must explicitly acknowledge the ARRA requirements associated with the funding of this RFP.  Additionally, the Applicant must specifically address the requirements listed in Section 2. 

If additional information is found within the Applicant’s Proposal, beyond that described in the RFP, the location of any such additional information must be referenced in the Transmittal Letter.

3.2.2 Conflicts of Interest

The Applicant must include a statement describing any potential conflicts of interest or absence thereof.

3.2.3   Signature of Authorized Representative

A person authorized to commit the Applicant to its representations and who can certify that the information offered in the proposal meets all terms and conditions of the RFP must sign the Transmittal Letter. In the Transmittal Letter, please indicate the principal contact for the proposal along with an address, telephone and fax number as well as an e-mail address of the principal contact. 

3.2.4 Applicant Notification 

Unless otherwise indicated in the Transmittal Letter, Applicants will be contacted via e-mail. 

It is the Applicant’s obligation to notify the IOED of any changes in any address that may have occurred since the origination of this RFP. The IOED is not responsible for incorrect Applicant contact information. 

3.2.5    Other Information

This item is optional. Any other information the Applicant may wish to briefly summarize will be acceptable.

3.3 BUSINESS PROPOSAL

The Business Proposal must address the following topics except those specifically identified as “optional.”  If a section asks for an attachment, please indicate whether the attachment is included as part of your response, and where it can be found in the Business Proposal.


3.3.1
General (optional)

This section of the Business Proposal may be used to introduce or summarize any information the Applicant deems relevant or important to the State’s consideration of its proposal.


3.3.2
Applicant Company Structure

The legal form of the Applicant’s business organization, the state in which formed (accompanied by a certificate of authority), the types of business ventures in which the organization is involved, and an explanation or a chart of the organization and its affiliates may be included in this section. 

3.3.3
Applicant Company Financial Information

The Applicant is encouraged to submit as an attachment to its Proposal the following:

(i) Applicant’s financial statements, including an income statement, balance sheet and notes to financial statements, for each of the three (3) most recently completed fiscal years and year to date financials dated within 60 days of the date of Applicant’s Proposal. The financial statements must demonstrate the Applicant’s financial stability.  If the financial statements being provided by the Applicant are those of a parent or holding company, additional financial information should be provided for the entity/organization directly responding to this RFP.

(ii) If the information in Section 3.3.3 is unavailable, Applicant is encouraged to provided forecasted balance sheets, income statements and cash flow statements for the next three (3) fiscal years, accompanied by a detailed explanation of the assumptions used in preparing the forecasts.  If the Project does not break-even within three (3) fiscal years, a break-even analysis for the Project should be included, along with similar financial information for any subsequent fiscal years until the Project becomes profitable.

(iii) Evidence of the Applicant’s ability to complete the Project and leverage SEP funding for additional public and private investments necessary to complete the Project, such as company financials reflecting the ability to fund the remainder of the Project, lender term sheets, investor commitment letters, or offers for incentives.

3.3.4
Integrity of Applicant Company Structure and Financial Reporting

This section must include a statement indicating that an officer of the Company has taken personal responsibility for the thoroughness and correctness of any/all financial information supplied with this proposal.  This statement must also indicate the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Applicant and whether the statements are in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The particular areas of interest to the State in considering corporate responsibility include the following items: separation of audit functions from corporate boards and board members, if any, the manner in which the organization assures board integrity, and the separation of audit functions and consulting services.  The information offered in this section will be included among the information considered by the State to determine the responsibility of the Applicant under IC 5-22-16-1(d).


3.3.5
Experience Conducting Similar Projects

Each Applicant is asked to please describe its experience and performance with other federal and state programs and with manufacturing Renewable Energy Products.  The Applicant may highlight its management or principal’s experience if relevant to the Applicant’s ability to complete the Project.  If Applicant is partnering with other entities to complete the Project, Applicant may list those entities and describe their role in the Project.  The State also reserves the right to use the State’s past experience with Applicant as a reference. 


3.3.6
Registration to do Business

If Applicant receives an award under this RFP, it will be required to be registered, and be in good standing, with the Indiana Secretary of State.  The registration requirement is applicable to all limited liability partnerships, limited partnerships, corporations, S-corporations, and limited liability companies. The Applicant must indicate the status of registration, if applicable, in this section of the proposal.


3.3.7
Authorizing Document 

Applicant personnel signing the Transmittal Letter of the proposal must be authorized by the organization to commit the Applicant.  This section should contain proof of such authority. A copy of corporate bylaws or a corporate resolution adopted by the board of directors indicating this authority will fulfill this requirement.  If sufficient documentation is not submitted with the Proposal, IOED may require that such documentation be filed prior to an award.

3.4 TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

The technical proposal must consist of the completed Project Objectives form (Attachment C), a summary of the Project and where appropriate or advisable to support its Proposal, further detail on how the Applicant will achieve the Project Objectives set forth in Section 1.7.  Where appropriate, supporting documentation may be referenced.  However, when this is done, the body of the Project Objectives form and the technical proposal must contain a meaningful summary of the referenced material. The referenced document must be included as an appendix to the technical proposal with referenced sections clearly marked. If there are multiple references or multiple documents, these must be listed and organized for ease of use by the State.

Please also include in your technical proposal how you will comply with Section 5.1, Buy American Act requirements, where applicable.

3.5 INDIANA ECONOMIC IMPACT

Consistent with the requirements of ARRA, the IOED places a strong emphasis on the economic impact a project will have in furthering the production, availability, presence, use, and market acceptance of Renewable Energy Products in Indiana and the availability of new clean energy jobs for its residents. All Applicants must complete an “Indiana Economic Impact” form (Attachment D).  Additionally, Applicants should demonstrate that the Project will provide other benefits to the State of Indiana, such as providing opportunities for expansion of “supply-chain clustering” or otherwise establishing or enhancing the State of Indiana, as a leader in Renewable Energy Products.

SECTION FOUR
PROJECT EVALUATION

4.1 PROJECT SELECTION

Project evaluation and selection is guided by the criteria as established by the IOED, including the criteria listed below.

4.2 REVIEW CRITERIA

Proposals will be evaluated based upon the proven ability of the Applicant to satisfy the requirements of the RFP.  Each of the evaluation criteria categories is described below with a brief explanation of the basis for evaluation in that category. The points associated with each category are indicated following the category name (total maximum points = 100).  If any one or more of the listed criteria on which the responses to this RFP will be evaluated are found to be inconsistent or incompatible with applicable federal laws, regulations or policies, the specific criterion or criteria will be disregarded and the responses will be evaluated and scored without taking into account such criterion or criteria.

Summary of Evaluation Criteria:

	Criteria
	Points

	1.  NEPA Compliance
	Pass/Fail

	2.  Compliance with other RFP Requirements
	Pass/Fail

	3.  Project Objectives (Section 1.7)
	40 Points

	4.  Indiana Economic Impact
	30 Points

	5.  Funds Leveraged
	20 Points

	6.  Experience/Past Performance  (Section 3.3.4)
	10 Points

	Total
	100


Within each Criterion, Proposal information, including the following aspects, will be evaluated and ranked using the scoring criteria set forth above:

NEPA Compliance

· Proposals will be evaluated to determine whether or not the Project proposed meets the NEPA requirements, as set forth above in Section 2.3.  Any Proposal not meeting that requirement shall fail and not receive further consideration. 

RFP Compliance

· Any proposal which does not provide all required documentation, executed forms or other mandatory conditions for consideration under this RFP shall fail and not receive further consideration. 

Project Objective

· Each Proposal achieving the above Compliance criteria will be evaluated to consider the Applicant’s compliance with the Project Objective requirements set forth in Section 1.7. 
Indiana Economic Impact

Each Proposal achieving the above Compliance criteria will be evaluated to consider whether: 

· The Project will result in the creation of net new full-time employment positions for Indiana residents.

· The Project will provide skills training to employees of the Applicant.

· The Project will provide other economic benefits to the State of Indiana, such as the ability to attract other supply chain cluster participants that will create additional jobs and will further advance Renewable Energy Products in the marketplace.

· The Applicant has a demonstrated ability to create and retain jobs.

Leveraged Funding

Each Proposal achieving the above Compliance criteria shall be evaluated to consider whether: 

· The Applicant has the financial wherewithal to complete the Project and is willing to match any investment for which the Applicant seeks assistance in an amount greater than the 1 to 1 basis to the extent required by Section 1.5.

· The Applicant has secured high levels of financial or similar commitment from the local community where the Project will take place.

· The Applicant has successfully sought or is likely to receive state and federal incentives, with Projects securing higher levels of other incentive commitments, including but not limited to support from the United States Department of Energy, being more considered favorably.

· The Applicants that require or have raised a significant amount of capital for the Project relative to the size of the company will be considered more favorably provided that the Applicant demonstrates an ability to secure that funding.

4.3 PROJECT EVALUATION PROCEDURE

All evaluation personnel will use the evaluation criteria stated in Section 4.2, and from those evaluations, the  IOED will determine which proposals to submit to DOE for confirmation, and if confirmed, to award, based upon the best means of servicing the interests of the State’s SEP objectives.

The procedure for evaluating the proposals against the evaluation criteria will be as follows:

4.3.1
Each Proposal will be evaluated for adherence to requirements on a pass/fail basis. Proposals that are incomplete or otherwise do not conform to proposal submission requirements may be eliminated from consideration. 

4.3.2
Each Proposal will be evaluated on the basis of the categories included in Section 4.2.  A point score has been established for each category.

4.3.3
If the Technical portions of one or more Proposals are close to equal, greater weight may be given to Job Creation and Fund Leveraging.  

4.3.4
The qualifying Proposals determined to be the most advantageous to the State, taking into account all of the evaluation factors and the SEP objectives, will be selected for further action, which may include additional investigations regarding financial wherewithal or the affect of a reduced award, and/or confirmation of NEPA compliance.  If, however, IOED determines that no proposal is sufficiently advantageous to the State, the State may take whatever further action is deemed necessary to satisfy the SEP.  If, for any reason, a Proposal is selected and the Applicant is not able to complete the award documents within the DOE SEP appropriate timeframe, the IOED may cancel all further award negotiations and make an award to the next qualified Applicant or determine that no such alternate Proposal exists.  

SECTION FIVE
OTHER REQUIREMENTS UNDER ARRA

5.1
SECTION 1605, BUY AMERICAN

Under Section 1605 of the ARRA, no funds appropriated by the Act may be used for a public buildings/works project unless “all iron, steel and manufactured goods used are produced in the U.S.”

Exceptions are allowed for cases:

• where the head of the federal agency concerned determines adherence would be “inconsistent with the public interest”,

• where iron/steel/manufactures are not produced in the U.S. in sufficient and available quantities, or

• inclusion of U.S. products would increase overall project cost by 25%

Notice of a waiver of the ARRA Buy American requirements must be noticed and justified in the Federal Register.

5.2
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Activities carried out and results achieved with ARRA funds will be tracked carefully and reported clearly quantifiably.  Applicants will be responsible for submitting financial and management progress reports to the IOED. Reports will be due on a quarterly and annual basis and must meet the special reporting requirements set forth under ARRA.

The IOED will be responsible for submitting multiple reports to DOE on the SEP ARRA funds. Please be advised that companies in receipt of these funds must submit reports on projects to meet DOE requirements. Multiple reports that will be due are as follows:

· Special Status Report

· Financial Reporting

· ARRA Performance Progress Report

· Closeout Reports

Recipients of funding appropriated by the Act shall comply with requirements of applicable Federal, State and local laws, regulations, DOE policy and guidance.

SECTION SIX
ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS
ASSURANCE SIGNATURE

NOTE: Sign this form and include in the application.

SIGNATURE: By signing this assurances page, you certify that you agree to perform all actions and support all intentions in the Assurances section.

Applicant Name: _____________________________________________________

Program Name: _________________________________________________________

Name and Title of Authorized Representative: _______________________________

Signature: ______________________________________________________________

Date: __________________________________________________________________

CERTIFICATION SIGNATURE

NOTE: Sign this form and include in the application.

SIGNATURE: By signing this Certification page, you certify that you agree to perform all actions and support all intentions in the Certification sections of this application. The three Certifications are:

· Certification: Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters

· Certification: Drug-Free Workplace

· Certification: Lobbying Activities

Applicant Name: ________________________________________________________

Program Name: _________________________________________________________

Name and Title of Authorized Representative: ________________________________

Signature: ______________________________________________________________

Date: __________________________________________________________________

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

CERTIFICATIONS/ASSURANCES/REPRESENTATIONS

WITHOUT EPACT REPRESENTATION

Applicant:  ______________________________________________________________

Solicitation No.:  _________________________________________________________

The following certifications and assurances must be completed and submitted with each application for financial assistance. The name of the person responsible for making the certifications and assurances must be typed in the signature block on the forms.

Standard Form 424B, Assurances – Non-Construction Programs

DOE F 1600.5, Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs

Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; and Drug Free Workplace Requirements

Representation of Limited Rights Data and Restricted Computer Software

ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

OMB Approval No. 0348-0040

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET, SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

Note:
Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant I certify that the applicant: (_________________________ Insert Name of Proposer):

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in this application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, and if appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award, and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.

3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

4. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the nineteen statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of O.P.M.'s Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 33601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application.

7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646), which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.

8. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §§874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for federally assisted construction subagreements. 

10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

11. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State Management Program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clear Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, (P.L. 93-205).

12. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers systems.

13. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. 469a-1 et seq).

14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.

15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 2131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.

16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.

17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1996, or OMB Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations and policies governing this program.

Printed Name and Title of

Authorized Representative:  _________________________________________________

________________________________________

________________________

SIGNATURE 






DATE

DOE F 1600.5


 U.S. Department of Energy

OMB Control No.

(06-94)



 Assurance of Compliance


1910-0400

Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1900-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction Project (1900-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

_____________________________________________________(Hereinafter called the “Applicant”) HEREBY AGREES to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L.88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy Administration Act of 1974 (Pub.L.93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub.L.93-438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (Pub.L.92-318, Pub.L.93-568, and Pub.L.94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub.L.93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub.L.94-135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub.L.90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of 1977 (Pub.L.95-91), and the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended (Pub.L.94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation

In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased, or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy.

Employment Practices

Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not limited to, recruitment advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training and participation in upward mobility programs;

or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with laws cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance form, however, the obligation or both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall include, but is not limited to, the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age, and disability; (3) data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national origin, sex, age, and disability, in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to its obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy, Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, building, or other structures) and all records, books, accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the date hereto, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representation and agreements made in this assurance and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose signature appears below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Applicant upon written request to DOE).

Designated Responsible Employee

___________________________________________
________________________ 

Name and Title (Printed to Typed) 



Telephone Number

___________________________________________
________________________

Signature 






Date

___________________________________________
________________________

Applicant’s Name 





Telephone Number

___________________________________________
________________________

Address






Date

Authorized Official:

President, Chief Executive Officer

or Authorized Designee

__________________________________________
________________________

Name and Title (Printed to Typed) 



Telephone Number

__________________________________________
________________________

Signature 






Date

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING;

DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS;

AND DRUG FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest.  Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. Signature of this form provides for compliance with certification requirements under 10 CFR Part 601 "New Restrictions on Lobbying," 10 CFR Part 606 "Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement) and 10 CFR Part 607 “Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants)." The certifications shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the Department of Energy determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

2. ADDITIONAL LOBBYING REPRESENTATION

Applicant organizations which are described in section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and engage in lobbying activities after December 31, 1995, are not eligible for the receipt of Federal funds constituting an award, grant, or loan.

As set forth in section 3 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 as amended, (2 U.S.C. 1602), lobbying activities are defined broadly to include, among other thins, contacts on behalf of an organization with specified employees of the Executive Branch and Congress with regard to Federal legislative, regulatory, and program administrative matters.

Check the appropriate block:

The applicant is an organization described in section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?  ⁭Yes  ⁭ No

If you checked “Yes” above, check the appropriate block:

The applicant represents that after December 31, 1995 it ⁭ has ⁭ has not engaged in any lobbying activities as defined in the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended.

3. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

This certification is required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub.L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D) and is implemented through additions to the Debarment and Suspension regulations, published in the Federal Register on January 31, 1989, and May

25, 1990.

ALTERNATE I (RECIPIENTS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

(1) The recipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the project be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the loan, the employee will:

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statue occurring in the workplace not later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency, in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every loan officer or other designee on whose loan activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected loan; 

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug- free workplace through implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(2) The recipient may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the specific loan:

Place of Performance: (Street address, city, county, state, zip code)

⁭ Check if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

ALTERNATE II (RECIPIENTS WHO ARE INDIVIDUALS)

(1) The recipient certifies that, as a condition of the grant, he or she will not engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance in conducting any activity with the loan.

(2) If convicted of a criminal drug offense resulting from a violation occurring during the conduct of any loan activity, he or she will report the conviction, in writing, within 10 calendar days of the conviction, to every loan officer or other designee, unless the Federal agency designates a central point for the receipt of such notices. When notice is made to such a central point, it shall include the identification number(s) of each affected loan.

5. SIGNATURE

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the above certifications.

Name of Applicant:  _______________________________________________________

Printed Name and Title of

Authorized Representative:  _________________________________________________

___________________________________________
________________________

SIGNATURE 






DATE

Representation of Limited Rights Data and Restricted Computer Software

(a) Any data delivered under an award resulting from this announcement is subject to the Rights in Data – General or the Rights in Data – Programs Covered under Special Data Statutes clause (See Intellectual Property Provisions at www.gc.doe.gov/gcmain.html). Under these clauses, the Recipient may withhold from delivery data that qualify as limited rights data or restricted computer software. As an aid in determining the Government’s need to include Alternate I and/or Alternate II in these clauses, which allow for delivery of limited rights data and/or restriction computer software, the applicant must complete paragraph (b) below to either state that none of the data involved in the proposed work effort qualify as limited rights data or restricted computer software, or identify, to the extent feasible, which of the data qualifies as limited rights data or restricted computer software. Any identification of limited rights data or restricted computer software in this application is not determinative of the status of such data should an award be made.

(b) The applicant has reviewed the proposed work effort and the requirements for the delivery of data or software and states:

⁭ None of the data proposed for fulfilling such requirements qualifies as limited rights data or restricted computer software.

⁭ Data proposed for fulfilling such requirements qualify as limited rights data or restricted computer software and are identified as follows:


________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Note: “limited rights data” and “restricted computer software” are defined in provision “Rights in Data – General.”
ATTACHMENT A

SAMPLE GRANT DOCUMENT

STATE ENERGY PROGRAM (SEP) GRANT 

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA)

EDS # A302-10-SEPR-

DE-EE0000169

This Grant Agreement, entered into by and between the Indiana Office of the Lieutenant Governor, Office of Energy Development (the “State”) and XXX  (the “Grantee”), is executed pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein.  In consideration of those mutual undertakings and covenants, the parties agree as follows:  

1. Purpose of this Grant Agreement.

The purpose of this Grant Agreement is to enable the State to make a subgrant from SEP-ARRA funds in the amount of  X Dollars and No Cents ($X.00) to the Grantee for the eligible costs of the project described in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Project").  The grant shall be used exclusively in accordance with the provisions contained in this Grant Agreement, as well as within the requirements, rules and regulations of the United States Department of Energy (DOE) grant programs and the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA).

2.
Term.
The term of this Grant Agreement shall be from *NEPA approval date* until  April 30, 2012 (the “Expiration Date”), unless sooner terminated as described in this Grant Agreement.  All draw downs of grant funds must be submitted by September 30, 2011.  All work and services carried out under this Grant Agreement must be completed prior to September 30, 2011  in order to be eligible for reimbursement.  No claims will be accepted after September 30, 2011, and any remaining grant funds will be de-obligated.

3.
Design and Implementation of Project.
The Grantee shall be solely responsible for the proper design and implementation of the Project as described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated fully herein.   The Grantee agrees to complete the Project in accordance with the plans and specifications contained in its application which is on file with the State and is incorporated by reference.  Modification of the Project shall require prior written approval of the State. Grantee shall fully comply with the provisions of Exhibit C and Exhibit D, which detail requirements of U.S. DOE.  Exhibits C and D are attached and fully incorporated by reference into this Grant Agreement.

4.
Monitoring Reviews by the State.

The State may conduct an on-site monitoring review of the Project.  Such monitoring review will document the following:

A. Whether Project activities are consistent with those set forth in Exhibit A, the grant applications, and the terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.

B. A complete, detailed analysis of actual state, local and/or private funds expended to date on the Project and conformity with the amounts for each budget line item as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

C. A detailed listing of all Project costs by project budget line item which are accrued yet unpaid, if any.

D. A written evaluation of the Project with respect to the Grantee’s timely progress in project management, financial management and control systems, procurement systems and methods, and performance relative to timely submission of quarterly project reports.
5.
Payment of Grant Funds by the State.
The payment of this Grant by the State to the Grantee shall be made in accordance with the following schedule and conditions:

A.
This Grant Agreement must be fully executed.

B.
Any grant conditions specified in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, must be met to the State’s satisfaction.

C.
Any other grant conditions must be met to the State’s satisfaction.

D.
The State may require evidence furnished by the Grantee that substantial progress has been made toward completion of the Project prior to making the first payment under this Grant.  All payments are subject to the State’s determination that the Grantee’s performance to date conforms to the Project as approved, notwithstanding any other provisions of this Grant Agreement.  

E.
Unless authorized by statute and previously agreed, all payments will be made in arrears only upon presentation of approved and signed State of Indiana Claim Vouchers.  Such Claim Vouchers must be submitted with a budget expenditure report detailing disbursements of state, local, and/or private funds by project budget line items.

F.
If advance payment of a portion of the grant funds is permitted by statute, and the State agrees to provide such advance payment, it shall be made only upon submission of a proper claim setting out the intended purposes of those funds.  After such funds have been expended, Grantee shall provide the State with a reconciliation of those expenditures.

G.
The Grantee shall submit to the State written progress reports until completion of the project.  These reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis.  These reports must detail progress made toward the completion of the Project described in Exhibit A.  

H.
If this Grant Agreement is terminated by either party prior to the Expiration Date of this Grant Agreement, the State may promptly conduct an on-site monitoring of the Project and complete a Project monitoring report.

I.
Failure to complete the project and expend State, local, and/or private funds in accordance with this Grant Agreement may be considered a material breach, and shall entitle the State to impose sanctions against the Grantee including, but not limited to, suspension of all grant payments, and/or suspension of the Grantee’s participation in State programs until such time as all material breaches are cured to the State’s satisfaction.  Sanctions may also include repayment of all State funds expended that are not in the scope of this Project or the Budget.

J.
All payments shall be made in arrears in conformance with State fiscal policies and procedures and, as required by IC 4-13-2-14.8, by electronic funds transfer to the financial institution designated by the Grantee in writing unless a specific waiver has been obtained from the Auditor of State.  No payments will be made in advance of receipt of the goods or services that are the subject of this Grant except as permitted by IC 4-13-2-20 or by the statute authorizing this Grant.

6.
Audits and Maintenance of Records.
Grantee shall submit to an audit of funds paid through this Grant Agreement, and shall make all books, accounting records and other documents that are directly pertinent to this Grant Agreement available at all reasonable times during the term of this Grant Agreement and for a period of three (3) years after final payment for inspection by the United States Department of Energy (DOE), the State of Indiana or its authorized designee, and the United States General Accounting Office (GAO).  Copies shall be furnished to the State at no cost. Exhibit C contains additional Audit requirements and guidelines required by DOE.

The State has provided all applicable information for State or Federal examiners of this Grant Agreement as shown in Exhibit B, which is attached and fully incorporated into this Grant Agreement.

7.
Project Budget and Budget Modification.
The approved Project Budget is set forth in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement.  The Grantee shall not spend more than the amount for each line item, as described in the Budget, without the prior written consent of a duly authorized representative of the State, nor shall the Project costs funded by this Grant Agreement and those funded by the local and/or private share be amended without the prior written consent of the State.

8.
Statutory Authority of Grantee.
The Grantee expressly represents and warrants to the State that it is statutorily eligible to receive monies from the State, and it expressly agrees to repay all monies paid to it under this Grant Agreement, should a legal determination of its ineligibility be made by any court of competent jurisdiction.

9.
Use of Grant Funds by Grantee.
The funds received by the Grantee pursuant to this Grant Agreement shall be used only to implement the Project in conformance with the Budget and for no other purpose.

10.
Compliance With Laws.

A.  
The Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, and all provisions required thereby to be included herein are hereby incorporated by reference.  The enactment of any state or federal statute or the promulgation of regulations thereunder after execution of this Grant Agreement shall be reviewed by the State and the Grantee to determine whether the provisions of this Grant Agreement require formal modification.

B.

The Grantee and its agents shall abide by all ethical requirements that apply to persons who have a business relationship with the State, as set forth in IC § 4-2-6 et seq., IC § 4-2-7, et. seq., the regulations promulgated thereunder, and Executive Order 04-08, dated April 27, 2004.  If the Grantee is not familiar with these ethical requirements, the Grantee should refer any questions to the Indiana State Ethics Commission, or visit the Indiana State Ethics Commission website at http://www.in.gov/ethics/.  If the Grantee or its agents violate any applicable ethical standards, the State may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Grant Agreement immediately upon notice to the Grantee.  In addition, the Grantee may be subject to penalties under IC §§ 4-2-6-12, 4-2-7, 35-44-1-3, and under any other applicable laws. 

C.  
The Grantee certifies by entering into this Grant Agreement, that neither it nor its principal(s) is presently in arrears in payment of its taxes, permit fees or other statutory, regulatory or judicially required payments to the State.  The Grantee agrees that any payments currently due to the State may be withheld from payments due to the Grantee. Additionally, further work or payments may be withheld, delayed, or denied and/or this Grant Agreement suspended until the Grantee is current in its payments and has submitted proof of such payment to the State.

D. 
The Grantee warrants that it has no current, pending or outstanding criminal, civil, or enforcement actions initiated by the State, and agrees that it will immediately notify the State of any such actions.  During the term of such actions, Grantee agrees that the State may delay, withhold, or deny work under any supplement, amendment, change order or other contractual device issued pursuant to this Grant Agreement.

 E. 
If a valid dispute exists as to the Grantee’s liability or guilt in any action initiated by the State or its agencies, and the State decides to delay, withhold, or deny funding to the Grantee, the Grantee may request that it be allowed to continue, or receive funding, without delay.  The Grantee must submit, in writing, a request for review to the Indiana Department of Administration (IDOA) following the procedures for disputes outlined herein. A determination by IDOA shall be binding on the parties.  Any payments that the State may delay, withhold, deny, or apply under this section shall not be subject to penalty or interest, except as permitted by IC § 5-17-5.

F. 
The Grantee warrants that the Grantee and its subgrantees, if any, shall obtain and maintain all required permits, licenses, registrations, and approvals, and shall comply with all health, safety, and environmental statutes, rules, or regulations in the performance of work activities for the State.  Failure to do so may be deemed a material breach of this Grant Agreement and grounds for immediate termination and denial of further payment by the State.

G. 
The Grantee affirms that, if it is any entity described in IC Title 23, it is properly registered and owes no outstanding reports to the Indiana Secretary of State.

H.  
As required by IC 5-22-3-7:

(1) 
The Grantee and any principals of the Grantee certify that:


(A) the Grantee, except for de minimis and nonsystematic violations, has not 
violated the terms of:



 (i) IC 24-4.7 [Telephone Solicitation Of Consumers];



 (ii) IC 24-5-12 [Telephone Solicitations]; or 



(iii) IC 24-5-14 [Regulation of Automatic Dialing Machines];

 
in the previous three hundred sixty-five (365) days, even if IC 24-4.7 is preempted by 
federal law; and 


(B) the Grantee will not violate the terms of IC 24-4.7 for the duration of this 
Grant Agreement, even if IC 24-4.7 is preempted by federal law.

(2) 
The Grantee and any principals of the Grantee certify that an affiliate or principal of the Grantee and any agent acting on behalf of the Grantee or on behalf of an affiliate or principal of the Grantee:  


(A) except for de minimis and nonsystematic violations, has not violated the 
terms of IC 24-4.7 in the previous three hundred sixty-five (365) days, even if 
IC 24-4.7 is preempted by federal law; and 


(B) will not violate the terms of IC 24-4.7 for the duration of this Grant 
Agreement, even if IC 24-4.7 is preempted by federal law.

11.
Drug-Free Workplace Certification.
The Grantee hereby covenants and agrees to make a good faith effort to provide and maintain a drug-free workplace.  Grantee will give written notice to the State within ten (10) days after receiving actual notice that the Grantee, or an employee of the Grantee in the State of Indiana has been convicted of a criminal drug violation occurring in Grantee’s workplace.

False certification or violation of the certification may result in sanctions including, but not limited to, suspension of grant payments, termination of the Grant and/or debarment of grant opportunities with the State of Indiana for up to three (3) years.

In addition to the provisions of the above paragraphs, if the total Grant amount set forth in this Grant Agreement is in excess of $25,000.00, Grantee hereby further agrees that this Grant Agreement is expressly subject to the terms, conditions and representations of the following Certification:

This certification is required by Executive Order No. 90-5, April 12, 1990, issued by the Governor of Indiana.  Pursuant to its delegated authority, the Indiana Department of Administration is requiring the inclusion of this certification in all grants with and grants from the State in excess of $25,000.00.  No award of a grant shall be made, and no grant, purchase order or agreement, the total amount of which exceeds $25,000.00, shall be valid, unless and until this certification has been fully executed by the Grantee and made a part of the Grant or agreement as part of the Grant documents.  In addition this certification is required by the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D) for all grants funded in whole or in part by Federal funds.

The Grantee certifies and agrees that it will provide a drug-free workplace by:

A.  Publishing and providing to all of its employees a statement notifying them employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Grantee’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; 

B.  Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform its employees of (1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; (2) the Grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; (3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and (4) the penalties that may be imposed upon an employee for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace; 

C.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (A);

D.  Notifying all employees in the statement required by subparagraph (A) above that as a condition of continued employment the employee will (1) abide by the terms of the statement; and (2) notify the Grantee in writing of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) calendar days after such conviction; and

E.  Notifying in writing the State within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice from an employee under subdivision (D)(2) above, or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.  Notification must include the grant identifier number for each affected grant;

F.  Within thirty (30) days after receiving notice under subdivision (C)(2) above of a conviction, imposing the following sanctions or remedial measures on any employee who is convicted of drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace: (1) take appropriate personnel action against the employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or (2) require such employee to satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

G.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through the implementation of subparagraphs (A) through (F) above.
12.
Funding Cancellation.
When the Director of the State Budget Agency makes a written determination that funds are not appropriated or otherwise available to support continuation of performance of this Grant Agreement, it shall be canceled.  A determination by the Director of the SBA that funds are not appropriated or otherwise available to support continuation of performance shall be final and conclusive.
13.
Information Technology Accessibility Standards. - Intentionally omitted.

14.
Nondiscrimination.
Pursuant to the Indiana Civil Rights Law, specifically including IC 22-9-1-10, and in keeping with the purposes of the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in employment Act, and the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Grantee covenants that it shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment relating to this Grant Agreement with respect to the hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of the employee or applicant’s:  race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability, ancestry, status as a veteran, or any other characteristic protected by federal, state, or local law (“Protected Characteristics”).  Furthermore, Grantee certifies compliance with applicable federal laws, regulations, and executive orders prohibiting discrimination based on the Protected Characteristics in the provision of services.  

The Grantee understands that the State is a recipient of federal funds, and therefore, where applicable, Grantee and any subgrantees and/or contractors agree to comply with requisite affirmative action requirements, including reporting, pursuant to 41 CFR Chapter 60, as amended, and Section 202 of Executive Order 11246.

15.
Notice to Parties.
Whenever any notice, statement or other communication is required under this Grant Agreement, it shall be sent to the following addresses, unless otherwise specifically advised.

A.
Notices to the State shall be sent to:


Indiana Office of Energy Development


One North Capitol, Suite 600


Indianapolis, IN 46204

B.
Notices to the Grantee shall be sent to:

C.
As required by IC 4-13-2-14.8, payments to the Grantee shall be made via electronic funds transfer in accordance with instructions filed by Grantee with the Auditor of State.
16.
Order of Precedence.
Any inconsistency or ambiguity in this Grant Agreement shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order: (1) This Grant Agreement, (2) Attachments prepared by the State; (3) Invitation to Apply for Grant, Request for Proposals 09-SEP05-1; and (4) the Grantee’s Application.

17.
Renewal. - Intentionally Omitted.

18.
Termination for Convenience.
This Grant Agreement may be terminated, in whole or in part, by the State whenever, for any reason, the State determines that such termination is in the best interest of the State.  Termination shall be effected by delivery to the Grantee of a Termination Notice, specifying the extent to which such termination becomes effective.  The Grantee shall be compensated for completion of the Project properly done prior to the effective date of termination.  The State will not be liable for work on the Project performed after the effective date of termination.  In no case shall total payment made to the Grantee exceed the original grant.

This Grant Agreement may be terminated by the Grantee by delivery to the State of a Termination Notice specifying the reasons for requesting such termination.  Such termination by the Grantee will be deemed effective on the date contained on the Termination Notice.  The Grantee shall not be entitled to compensation for expenses incurred after the date of termination. 

In the event of termination, or cancellation, the Grantee will comply with State directives regarding the return of project funds.  The State may, at its sole discretion, conduct an on-site monitoring of the project if the Grant Agreement is terminated or cancelled by either party.

19.
Boilerplate Affirmation.
I swear or affirm under the penalties of perjury that I have not altered, modified or changed the State’s Boilerplate contract clauses (as defined in the 2009 OAG/IDOA Professional Services Contract Manual) in any way except for the following clauses which are named below: 

3. Design and Implementation of Project—modifications to meet program requirements of U.S. DOE.

6.  Audit and Maintenance of Records—modifications to meet program requirements of U.S. DOE.

11.  Drug-Free Workplace—language required by U.S. DOE.

13.  Information Technology Accessibility Standards: Intentionally omitted.

17.  Renewal: Intentionally Omitted.
18.  Termination for Convenience—U.S. DOE requires mutual termination for convenience options.

20.  
Assignment; Successors.
The Grantee binds its successors and assignees to all the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement.  The Grantee shall not assign or subcontract the whole or any part of this Grant Agreement without the State’s prior written consent.  The Grantee may assign its right to receive payments to such third parties as the Grantee may desire without the prior written consent of the State, provided that Grantee gives written notice (including evidence of such assignment) to the State thirty (30) days in advance of any payment so assigned.  The assignment shall cover all unpaid amounts under this Grant Agreement and shall not be made to more than one party.

21.
Authority to Bind.
The signatory for the Grantee represents that he/she has been duly authorized to execute this Grant Agreement on behalf of the Grantee and has obtained all necessary or applicable approvals to make this Grant Agreement fully binding upon the Grantee when his/her signature is affixed, and accepted by the State.

22.
Changes in Work.

The Grantee shall not commence any additional work or change the scope of the work until authorized in writing by the State.  Grantee shall make no claim for additional compensation in the absence of a prior written approval and amendment executed by all signatories hereto. The Grant Agreement may only be amended, supplemented or modified by a written document executed in the same manner as this Grant Agreement.

23.
Debarment and Suspension.
A.
The Grantee certifies by entering into this Grant Agreement that neither it nor its principals nor any of its subgrantees or contractors are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from entering into this Grant Agreement by any federal agency or by any department, agency or political subdivision of the State.  The term “principal” for purposes of this Grant Agreement means an officer, director, owner, partner, key employee, or other person with primary management or supervisory responsibilities, or a person who has a critical influence on or substantive control over the operations of the Grantee.  

B.
The Grantee certifies that it has verified the state and federal suspension and debarment status for all subgrantees or contractors receiving funds under this Grant Agreement and shall be solely responsible for any recoupment, penalties or costs that might arise from use of a suspended or debarred subgrantee or contractor. The Grantee shall immediately notify the State if any subgrantee or contractor becomes debarred or suspended, and shall, at the State’s request, take all steps required by the State to terminate its contractual relationship with the subgrantee or contractor for work to be performed under this Grant Agreement.
24.
Force Majeure.
In the event that either party is unable to perform any of its obligations under this Grant Agreement or to enjoy any of its benefits because of natural disaster or decrees of governmental bodies not the fault of the affected party (hereinafter referred to as a “Force Majeure Event”), the party who has been so affected shall immediately give notice to the other party and shall do everything possible to resume performance.  Upon receipt of such notice, all obligations under this Grant Agreement shall be immediately suspended.  If the period of nonperformance exceeds thirty (30) days from the receipt of notice of the Force Majeure Event, the party whose ability to perform has not been so affected may, by giving written notice, terminate this Grant Agreement.

25.
Governing Laws.
This Grant Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Indiana and suit, if any, must be brought in the State of Indiana.

26.
Indemnification.
The Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State, its agents, officials, and employees from all claims and suits including court costs, attorney’s fees, and other expenses caused by any act or omission of the Grantee and/or its subgrantees, if any, in the performance of this Grant Agreement.  The State shall not provide such indemnification to the Grantee.

27.
Merger & Modification: 

This Grant Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  No understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified within this Grant Agreement will be valid provisions of this Grant Agreement.  This Grant Agreement may not be modified, supplemented, or amended, in any manner, except by written agreement signed by all necessary parties.

28.
Penalties/Interest/Attorney's Fees.

The State will in good faith perform its required obligations hereunder and does not agree to pay any penalties, liquidated damages, interest or attorney’s fees, except as permitted by Indiana law, in part, IC 5-17-5, IC 34-54-8, and IC 34-13-1.

Notwithstanding the provisions contained in IC 5-17-5, any liability resulting from the State of Indiana’s failure to make prompt payment shall be based solely on the amount of funding originating from the State and shall not be based on funding from federal or other sources.

29.
Severability.
The invalidity of any section, subsection, clause or provision of this Grant Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, subsections, clauses or provisions of the Grant Agreement.

30.
Confidentiality of Grantee Information.

To the extent feasible and permissible by Indiana’s Access to Public Records Law (IC 5-14-3), the State will honor the Grantee’s request that confidential information submitted to the State remain confidential.  The State will treat the information as confidential only if: (1) the information is in fact protected confidential information, such as records required to be kept confidential by federal law or records containing trade secrets, (2) the information is specifically marked and identified as confidential by the applicant, (3) the information is segregated from other material submitted, and (4) no disclosure of the information is required by the law or judicial order.  The honoring of the confidentiality of identified data shall not limit the State’s right to disclose the details and results of the Project to the public.

31.
Waiver of Rights.
No right conferred on either party under this Grant Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach of this Grant Agreement excused, unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived such right. Neither the State’s review, approval or acceptance of, not payment for, the services under this Grant Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Grant Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this Grant Agreement, and the Grantee shall be and remain liable to the State in accordance with applicable law for all damages to the State caused by the Grantee’s negligent performance of any of the services furnished under this Grant Agreement.

32.
Survival.
The covenants, agreements, and representations of Grantee in this Grant Agreement shall survive the Expiration Date or earlier termination of this Grant Agreement.

33.
Remedies Not Impaired.

No delay on the part of the State in the exercise of any power or right shall operate as a waiver of that power or right.  A single or partial exercise of any power or right does not preclude the further exercise of that power or right or the exercise of any other power or right.  All rights and remedies existing under this Grant Agreement shall be cumulative and in addition to those other rights which may be provided by law.

34.
Representations Concerning Application.
The Grantee represents and warrants that the representations, statements and all other matters contained in the application submitted by the Grantee to the State are true and complete in all material respects.  It shall be considered a material breach of this Grant Agreement if such representations, statements and other matters were not true and complete at the time the application was made.

Grantee represents and warrants that it has in good faith applied for these grant funds and intends to complete the project described in the application submitted to the State.  

35. 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Funding.  

Funds supporting this Grant have been provided through the “American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009” (“ARRA”) and are subject to the reporting and operational requirements of ARRA.   The State makes no representations/guarantees about funding beyond the grant period as this is being funded with one time dollars from the ARRA.  The recipient of these funds is responsible for record keeping and reporting requirements under ARRA.  Reports required by Federal agencies and the State of Indiana shall include, but are not limited to, performance indicators of program deliverables, information on costs and progress against timelines.  Additionally, each contract and grant subject to ARRA, including subcontractors and subgrantees, is subject to audit by appropriate federal or state entities.   Failure to comply with the terms, conditions and requirements of ARRA may result in the recapture of the balance of funds awarded.   

SPECIAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO WORK FUNDED UNDER AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT OF 2009 
Preamble 
The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, (Recovery Act) was enacted to preserve and create jobs and promote economic recovery, assist those most impacted by the recession, provide investments needed to increase economic efficiency by spurring technological advances in science and health, invest in transportation, environmental protection, and other infrastructure that will provide long-term economic benefits, stabilize State and local government budgets, in order to minimize and avoid reductions in essential services and counterproductive State and local tax increases.  Recipients shall use grant funds in a manner that maximizes job creation and economic benefit. 

The Recipient shall comply with all terms and conditions in the Recovery Act relating generally to governance, accountability, transparency, data collection and resources as specified in Act itself and as discussed below. 

Recipients should begin planning activities for their first tier subrecipients, including obtaining a DUNS number (or updating the existing DUNS record), and registering with the Central Contractor Registration (CCR).    

Be advised that Recovery Act funds can be used in conjunction with other funding as necessary to complete projects, but tracking and reporting must be separate to meet the reporting requirements of the Recovery Act and related guidance.  For projects funded by sources other than the Recovery Act, Contractors must keep separate records for Recovery Act funds and to ensure those records comply with the requirements of the Act.   

The Government has not fully developed the implementing instructions of the Recovery Act, particularly concerning specific procedural requirements for the new reporting requirements.  The Recipient will be provided these details as they become available.  The Recipient must comply with all requirements of the Act.  If the recipient believes there is any inconsistency between ARRA requirements and current award terms and conditions, the issues will be referred to the Contracting Officer for reconciliation. 

Definitions 
For purposes of this clause, Covered Funds means funds expended or obligated from appropriations under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5.  Covered Funds will have special accounting codes and will be identified as Recovery Act funds in the grant, cooperative agreement or TIA and/or modification using Recovery Act funds.  Covered Funds must be reimbursed by September 30, 2015. 

Non-Federal employer means any employer with respect to covered funds – the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, or recipient, as the case may be, if the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, or recipient is an employer; and any professional membership organization, certification of other professional body, any agent or licensee of the Federal government, or any person acting directly or indirectly in the interest of an employer receiving covered funds; or with respect to covered funds received by a State or local government, the State or local government receiving the funds and any contractor or subcontractor receiving the funds and any contractor or subcontractor of the State or local government; and does not mean any department, agency, or other entity of the federal government.  

Recipient means any entity that receives Recovery Act funds directly from the Federal government (including Recovery Act funds received through grant, loan, or contract) other than an individual and includes a State that receives Recovery Act Funds.    

Special Provisions 
A. Flow Down Requirement  
Recipients must include these special terms and conditions in any subaward. 

B. Segregation of Costs 
Recipients must segregate the obligations and expenditures related to funding under the Recovery Act.  Financial and accounting systems should be revised as necessary to segregate, track and maintain these funds apart and separate from other revenue streams.  No part of the funds from the Recovery Act shall be commingled with any other funds or used for a purpose other than that of making payments for costs allowable for Recovery Act projects. 

C.  Prohibition on Use of Funds   

None of the funds provided under this agreement derived from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, may be used by any State or local government, or any private entity, for any casino or other gambling establishment, aquarium, zoo, golf course, or swimming pool.    

D.  Access to Records  

With respect to each financial assistance agreement awarded utilizing at least some of the funds appropriated or otherwise made available by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5,  any representative of an appropriate inspector general appointed under section 3 or 8G of the Inspector General Act of 1988 (5 U.S.C. App.) or of the Comptroller General is authorized – 

(1) to examine any records of the contractor or grantee, any of its subcontractors or subgrantees, or any State or local agency administering such contract that pertain to, and involve transactions relation to, the subcontract, subcontract, grant, or subgrant; and  

(2) to interview any officer or employee of the contractor, grantee, subgrantee, or agency regarding such transactions.   

E.   Protecting State and Local Government and Contractor Whistleblowers.  

The requirements of Section 1553 of the Act are summarized below.  They include, but are not limited to: 

Prohibition on Reprisals:  An employee of any non-Federal employer receiving covered funds under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal for disclosing, including a disclosure made in the ordinary course of an employee’s duties, to the Accountability and Transparency Board, an inspector general, the Comptroller General, a member of Congress, a State or Federal regulatory or law enforcement agency, a person with supervisory authority over the employee (or other person working for the employer who has the authority to investigate, discover or terminate misconduct, a court or grant jury, the head of a Federal agency, or their representatives information that the employee believes is evidence of: 

• gross management of an agency contract or grant relating to covered funds; 

• a gross waste of covered funds 

• a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety related to the implementation or use of covered funds; 

• an abuse of authority related to the implementation or use of covered funds; or 

• as violation of law, rule, or regulation related to an agency contract (including the competition for or negotiation of a contract) or grant, awarded or issued relating to covered funds. 

Agency Action:  Not later than 30 days after receiving an inspector general report of an alleged reprisal, the head of the agency shall determine whether there is sufficient basis to conclude that the non-Federal employer has subjected the employee to a prohibited reprisal.  The agency shall either issue an order denying relief in whole or in part or shall take one or more of the following actions: 

• Order the employer to take affirmative action to abate the reprisal. 

• Order the employer to reinstate the person to the position that the person held before the reprisal, together with compensation including back pay, compensatory damages, employment benefits, and other terms and conditions of employment that would apply to the person in that position if the reprisal had not been taken. 

• Order the employer to pay the employee an amount equal to the aggregate amount of all costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and expert witnesses’ fees) that were reasonably incurred by the employee for or in connection with, bringing the complaint regarding the reprisal, as determined by the head of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Nonenforceablity of Certain Provisions Waiving Rights and remedies or Requiring Arbitration:  Except as provided in a collective bargaining agreement, the rights and remedies provided to aggrieved employees by this section may not be waived by any agreement, policy, form, or condition of employment, including any predispute arbitration agreement.  No predispute arbitration agreement shall be valid or enforceable if it requires arbitration of a dispute arising out of this section. 

Requirement to Post Notice of Rights and Remedies:  Any employer receiving covered funds under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, shall post notice of the rights and remedies as required therein. (Refer to section 1553 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, www.Recovery.gov, for specific requirements of this section and prescribed language for the notices.). 

F. False Claims Act 
Recipient and sub-recipients shall promptly refer to the DOE or other appropriate Inspector General any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, contractor, sub-grantee, subcontractor or other person has submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act or has committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict or interest, bribery, gratuity or similar misconduct involving those funds. 

G. Information in supporting of Recovery Act Reporting 
Recipient may be required to submit backup documentation for expenditures of funds under the Recovery Act including such items as timecards and invoices.  Recipient shall provide copies of backup documentation at the request of the Contracting Officer or designee. 
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Non-Collusion and Acceptance

The undersigned attests, subject to the penalties for perjury, that he/she is the Grantee, or that he/she is the properly authorized representative, agent, member or officer of the Grantee, that he/she has not, nor has any other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Grantee, directly or indirectly, to the best of the undersigned’s knowledge, entered into or offered to enter into any combination, collusion or agreement to receive or pay, and that he/she has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration for the execution of this Grant Agreement other than that which appears upon the face of this Grant Agreement.

In Witness Whereof, Grantee and the State have, through their duly authorized representatives, entered into this Grant Agreement.  The parties having read and understood the foregoing terms of this Grant Agreement, do by their respective signatures dated below hereby agree to the terms thereof.

Grantee Name
By:

 SAMPLE ONLY

Printed Name:


Title:


Date:


Office of the Lieutenant Governor


                                                                       (for)

Rebecca Skillman, Lieutenant Governor

Date:


Department of Administration

___________________________________ (for)
Mark W. Everson, Commissioner

Date: __________________________________


          APPROVED as to Form and Legality:

State Budget Agency


    Office of the Attorney General

__________________________________ (for)
  _______________________________(for)

Christopher A. Ruhl, Director

      Gregory F. Zoeller, Attorney General

Date: ________________________________
      Date:___________________________

EXHIBIT A

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
 

EQUIPMENT LIST--Budget
 

Grantee certifies that the equipment listed below is not experimental research and development equipment, but is equipment used during the manufacturing process. Grantee further certifies that the equipment is commercially available and does not produce emissions or byproducts requiring permits or approval from State or Federal governmental entities.  Grantee will use this grant award to finance these purchases, up to the total award of X.  Grantee must provide a dollar for dollar match to this award.  

Reporting and Other requirements:

1. Maintain communication with the State for the duration of the Grant.  Grantee shall allow the State to conduct project site visits when given five (5) business days notice.

2. List the “Indiana Office of Energy Development” as a sponsor on Grantee website, and where appropriate include in educational and marketing materials or at Grantee events.  Grantee shall use the logo provided by the Indiana Office of Energy Development.  Grantee shall display any signage provided by OED that identifies OED as a sponsor in the project.  Signage shall be displayed in a prominent location where visitors will be likely to see it. 

3. Provide the State with an update on the project in monthly and quarterly reports.  Reports detail activities and results for the time specified, and include information about grant monies received, energy/environmental benefits, community benefits, and a narrative depicting the project’s progress.   Grantees are required to submit monthly reports until the date that denotes the end of the contract time frame.

4. Provide the State with a final report.  Final reports are required by each Grantee within 30 days after the contract’s expiration date. These reports are formatted in the same manner as quarterly reports, and indicate the culmination of all work performed by the grantee in exchange for grant awards.  The close out stage will not commence until the final report is received. 

EXHIBIT B
In accordance with the rules governing the administration of federal programs, the following information is provided to the Grantee for tracking of federal funds and to allow State or Federal examiners to identify the origin of federal funding:

CFDA No.:


81.041

TITLE:



State Energy Program--ARRA

AWARD No.:


DE-EE-0000169-10- SEPR-

 FEDERAL AGENCY:

U.S. Department of Energy (DOE)

STATE:
Office of the Lieutenant Governor

EXHIBIT C
OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Grantees should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest.  Grantees should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before signing this Grant Agreement.  Signature of this Grant Agreement provides for compliance with certification requirements under 34 CFR Part 82, “New Restrictions on Lobbying” and 34 CFR Part 85, “Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement) and Government-wide Requirement for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants).”  This certification shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon by the Grantee, and is required as a prerequisite for entering into this transaction.

I.  LOBBYING
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

 (A) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

 (B) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

 (C) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

 This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

 The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

 If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

 Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required statement shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $ 10,000 and not more than $ 100,000 for each such failure.

II.  DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS
(A)  The Grantee certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

(1)  are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(2)  have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant Agreement been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property.

(3)  are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (A)(2) of this certification; and 

(4)  have not within a three-year period preceding this Agreement had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(B)  Where the primary Grantee is unable to certify to any of the statements in section II (1), Grantee shall provide a written explanation to the Office of Energy and Development immediately.

III.  LOBBYING DISCLOSURE ACT OF 1995, SIMPSON-CRAIG AMENDMENT

Applicant organizations which are described in section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and engage in lobbying activities after December 31, 1995, shall not be eligible for the receipt of Federal funds constituting an award, grant, or loan.  Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 covers:

Civic leagues or organizations not organized for profit but operated exclusively for the promotion of social welfare, or local associations of employees, the membership of which is limited to the employees of a designated person or persons in a particular municipality, and the net earnings of which are devoted exclusively to charitable, educational, or recreational purposes.

As set forth in the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 (Public Law 104-65, December 19, 1995) as amended [“Simpson-Craig Amendment,” see Section 129 of the Balanced Budget Downpayment Act, I (Public Law 104-99, January 26, 1996)], lobbying activities is defined broadly.  (See section 3 of the Act.)

The Grantee certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:  it IS NOT an organization described in section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; OR that it IS an organization described in section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, which after December 31, 1995, HAS NOT engaged in any lobbying activities as defined in the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended.

IV.  ADDITIONAL AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR GRANTEES THAT EXPEND OVER $500,000 IN FEDERAL AWARDS PER YEAR
Any grantee expending Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) or more in Federal awards per year must have an audit made for that year by an independent auditor.  For-profit organizations should consult 10 CFR 600.316 for guidance.  Non-profit organizations, institutions of higher education, and local governments should consult the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507) and revised OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations” for guidance.  

V.  The Davis-Bacon Act—Wage Rate Requirements under ARRA

(A)  Section 1606 of the Recovery Act (ARRA) requires that all laborers and mechanics employed by recipients and subrecipients on projects funded directly by or assisted in whole or in part by ARRA funds shall be paid wages at rates not less than those prevailing on projects of a character similar in the locality as determined by the United States Secretary of Labor in accordance with subchapter IV of chapter 31 of title 40, United State Code.  Additionally, the following clauses must be included in any lower tier contracts between Grantee and a contractor in excess of $2,000 for the construction, alteration, or repair (including decorating and painting) of a building in conjunction with this project:

(1) Minimum wages. (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (a)(1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in §5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH–1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

( 1 ) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and

( 2 ) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

( 3 ) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

(2) Withholding. The Grantee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, the (Agency) may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

(3) Payrolls and basic records. (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(ii)(A) The Grantee shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the OED, if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the OED. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee ( e.g. , the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the OED, if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit them to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the OED, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the applicant, sponsor, or owner).

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

( 1 ) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and complete;

( 2 ) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;

( 3 ) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH–347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compliance” required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the (write the name of the agency) or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

(4) Apprentices and trainees —(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.

(5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

(6) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the (write in the name of the Federal agency) may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

(7) Contract termination: debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

(8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

(9) Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

(10) Certification of eligibility. (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

(b) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The Agency Head shall cause or require the contracting officer to insert the following clauses set forth in paragraphs (b)(1), (2), (3), and (4) of this section in full in any contract in an amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by §5.5(a) or4.6 of part 4 of this title. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards.

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The (write in the name of the Federal agency or the loan or grant recipient) shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(2) of this section.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (b)(1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (b)(1) through (4) of this section.

(c) In addition to the clauses contained in paragraph (b), in any contract subject only to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other statutes cited in §5.1, the Agency Head shall cause or require the contracting officer to insert a clause requiring that the contractor or subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. Further, the Agency Head shall cause or require the contracting officer to insert in any such contract a clause providing that the records to be maintained under this paragraph shall be made available by the contractor or subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the OED and the Department of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.

VI.  FEDERAL FLOW-DOWN REQUIREMENTS
STATEMENT OF FEDERAL STEWARDSHIP – MANDATORY FLOW DOWN REQUIRED 

DOE will exercise normal Federal stewardship in overseeing the project activities performed under this award.  Stewardship activities include, but are not limited to, conducting site visits; reviewing performance and financial reports; providing technical assistance and/or temporary intervention in unusual circumstances to correct deficiencies which develop during the project; assuring compliance with terms and conditions; and reviewing technical performance after project completion to ensure that the award objectives have been accomplished.

SITE VISITS – MANDATORY FLOW DOWN REQUIRED 

DOE's authorized representatives have the right to make site visits at reasonable times to review project accomplishments and management control systems and to provide technical assistance, if required.  You must provide, and must require your subawardees to provide, reasonable access to facilities, office space, resources, and assistance for the safety and convenience of the government representatives in the performance of their duties.  All site visits and evaluations must be performed in a manner that does not unduly interfere with or delay the work.

FEDERAL, STATE, AND MUNICIPAL REQUIREMENTS – MANDATORY FLOW DOWN REQUIRED 
You must obtain any required permits and comply with applicable federal, state, and municipal laws, codes, and regulations for work performed under this award.

NOTICE REGARDING THE PURCHASE OF AMERICAN-MADE EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCTS -- SENSE OF CONGRESS – MANDATORY FLOW DOWN REQUIRED 

It is the sense of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and products purchased with funds made available under this award should be American-made.

HISTORIC PRESERVATION --  MANDATORY FLOW DOWN REQUIRED
Prior to the expenditure of Federal funds to alter any structure or site, the Recipient is required to comply with the requirements of Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), consistent with DOE’s 2009 letter of delegation of authority regarding the NHPA.  Section 106 applies to historic properties that are listed in or eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  In order to fulfill the requirements of Section 106, the recipient must contact the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO), and, if applicable, the Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO), to coordinate the Section 106 review outlined in 36 CFR Part 800.  SHPO contact information is available at the following link:  http://www.ncshpo.org/find/index.htm.  THPO contact information is available at the following link:  http://www.nathpo.org/map.html .

Section 110(k) of the NHPA applies to DOE funded activities.  Recipients shall avoid taking any action that results in an adverse effect to historic properties pending compliance with Section 106.

Recipients should be aware that the DOE Contracting Officer will consider the recipient in compliance with Section 106 of the NHPA only after the Recipient has submitted adequate background documentation to the SHPO/THPO for its review, and the SHPO/THPO has provided written concurrence to the Recipient that it does not object to its Section 106 finding or determination.  Recipient shall provide a copy of this concurrence to the Contracting Officer.

EXHIBIT D

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE

NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS
GRANTEE HEREBY AGREES to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

(Pub.L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy Administration Act of 1974 (Pub.L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub.L. 93-438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (Pub.L. 92-318, Pub.L. 93-568, and Pub.L. 94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub.L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub.L. 94-135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub.L. 90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of 1977 (Pub.L. 95-91), and the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended (Pub.L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040.  In accordance with the above laws and regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied to benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Grantee receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

I.  Applicability and Period of Obligation
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased, or improved, with Federal assistance extended to the Grantee by the Department of Energy, this assurance obligates the Grantee for the period during which Federal assistance is extended.  In the case of any transfer of such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which Federal assistance is extended.  If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the Grantee for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.  In all other cases, this assurance obligates the Grantee for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Grantee by the Department of Energy.

II.  Employment Practices

Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Grantee’s employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance extended by the Department, the Grantee agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices.  Such employment practices may include, but are not limited to, recruitment advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities. 

III.  Subrecipient Assurance

The Grantee shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with which it subcontracts, subgrants, or subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with laws cited above.  To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance form, however, the obligation or both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the collection or submission of written assurance forms.

IV.  Data Collection and Access to Records

The Grantee agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result of the Grantee’s receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.  Such information shall include, but is not limited to, the following:  (1)  the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (2)  the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age, and disability; (3)  data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national origin, sex, age, and disability, in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to its obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.  

The Grantee agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities developed by the Grantee from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy, Facilities of the Grantee (including physical plants, building, or other structures) and all records, books, accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Grantee’s compliance with the civil rights laws shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer of employee of the Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections.  Instructions in this regard will be provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the date hereto, to the Grantees by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date.  The Grantee recognizes and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representation and agreements made in this assurance and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance.  This assurance is binding on the Grantee, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose signature appears on this Grant Agreement and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Grantee.

Grantee certifies by signing this Grant Agreement that it has complied, or that, within ninety (90) days of the date of this grant, will comply with all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5.  A copy will be furnished to Grantee upon written request to the Office of the Lieutenant Governor, Office of Energy Development.

ATTACHMENT B

NEPA EF-1
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GO-EF1
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
(2/06/02)
GOLDEN FIELD OFFICE
	     ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

(To Be Completed by Potential Recipient)


The Department of Energy (DOE) is required by the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of 1969 as amended (42 U.S.C. 4332(2), 40 CFR parts 1500-1508) and DOE implementing regulations (10 CFR 1021) to consider the environmental effects resulting from federal actions, including providing financial assistance.  Please provide the following information to facilitate DOE’s environmental review.  DOE needs to evaluate the requested information as part of your award negotiation.

Instructions and Handbook:  Terms that appear in blue have more detailed information available to assist you in completing the form.  Save the form to your local directory.  Leave your internet browser open and open the form in Word from the local directory.  Click on the blue term and it will automatically open the handbook at the appropriate place.  Click on the back button to return to your form.  Or, you may click here to open the handbook.

PART I:
General Information 

	Project Title:
	

	Solicitation Number:
	


1.
Please describe the intended use of DOE funding in your proposed project.  For example, would the funding be applied to the entire project or only support a phase of the project?  Describe the activity as specifically as possible, i.e. planning, feasibility study, design, data analysis, education or outreach activities, construction, capital purchase and/or equipment installation or modification.  

2.
Does any part of your project require review and/or permitting by any other federal, state, regional, local, environmental, or regulatory agency?           FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes
 FORMCHECKBOX 
   No

If yes, please provide a list of required reviews and permits in the appropriate item number in Part II.

3.
Has any review (e.g., NEPA documentation, permits, agency consultations) been completed?     FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  No       

If yes, is a finding or report available and how can a copy be obtained?

4.
Is the proposed project part of a larger scope of work?   FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes
   FORMCHECKBOX 
    No    If yes, please describe.  Do you anticipate requesting additional federal funding for subsequent phases of this project?    FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes
 FORMCHECKBOX 
   No   If yes, please describe.

5.
Does the scope of your project only involve one or more of the following:

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Information gathering such as literature surveys, inventories, audits,

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Data analysis including computer modeling,

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Document preparation such as design, feasibility studies, analytical energy supply and demand studies, or

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Information dissemination, including document mailings, publication, distribution, training, conferences, and informational programs.

If the scope of your project is limited to the block(s) checked above, please skip to Part III, otherwise, continue to Part II.

PART II: Environmental Considerations
Table A.
Please indicate if any of the following conditions or special areas is present, required, or could be affected by your project:

	Item

No.
	Description
	Yes/No
	Specific nature or type of activity or condition.  If a consultation, approval, or permit applies, please describe.

	1
	Clearing or Excavation (indicate if greater than 1 acre)
	
	

	2
	Dredge and/or Fill. Specify the number of acres involved.
	
	

	3
	New or Modified Federal/State Permits
And/or Requests for Exemptions
	
	

	4
	Pre-Existing Contamination

	
	

	5
	Asbestos 


	
	

	6
	Criteria Pollutants

	
	

	7
	Non-Attainment Areas

	
	

	8
	Class I Air Quality Control Region

	
	

	9
	Navigable Air Space

	
	

	10
	Areas with Special Designation (e.g., National Forests, Parks, Trails)


	
	

	11
	Prime, Unique or Important Farmland

	
	

	12
	Archeological/Cultural Resources

	
	

	13
	Threatened/Endangered Species and/or Critical Habitat
	
	

	14
	Other Protected Species (Wild Burros, Migratory Birds)
	
	

	15
	Floodplains

	
	

	16
	Special Sources of Groundwater (e.g., Sole Source Aquifer)
	
	

	17
	Underground Extraction/Injection
(non-hazardous substances)


	
	

	18
	Wetlands

	
	

	19
	Coastal Zones

	
	

	20
	Public Issues or Concerns

	
	

	21
	Noise

	
	

	22
	Depletion of a Non-Renewable Resource  


	
	

	23
	Aesthetics

	
	


Table B.
Would your project use, disturb, or produce any chemicals or biological substances?  (i.e., pesticides, industrial process, fuels, lubricants, bacteria)  If not, skip to Section C.

Please indicate if any of the materials or processes listed below applies.

	Item No.
	Description
	Yes/No
	Quantity
	Permit required? Type?
	Specific type, use, or condition

	1
	Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)


	
	
	
	

	2
	Import, Manufacture, or Processing of Toxic Substances

	
	
	
	

	3
	Chemical Storage, Use, and Disposal

	
	
	
	

	4
	Pesticide Use

	
	
	
	

	5
	Hazardous, Toxic, or Criteria Pollutant Air Emissions

	
	
	
	

	6
	Liquid Effluent

	
	
	
	

	7
	Underground Extraction/Injection
(hazardous substances)


	
	
	
	

	8
	Hazardous Waste

	
	
	
	

	9
	Underground Storage Tanks

	
	
	
	

	10
	Biological Materials.  Indicate if genetically altered materials are involved.
	
	
	
	


Table C.
Would your project require or produce any radiological materials?   If not, skip to Part III.

Please indicate if any of the materials listed below applies.

	Item No.
	Description
	Yes/No
	Quantity 
	Permit required? Type?
	Specific nature of use

	1
	Radioactive Mixed Waste

	
	
	
	

	2
	Radioactive Waste

	
	
	
	

	3
	Radiation Exposures

	
	
	
	


Part III: Contact Information
Please provide the name of the preparer of this form and a contact person who can answer questions or provide additional information.

	Preparer
	
	Telephone Number
	
	E-mail Address
	


	Contact
	
	Telephone Number
	
	E-mail Address
	


ATTACHMENT C

PROJECT OBJECTIVES FORM

All applicants must complete the following thirteen (13) items.  Applicants may attach supporting documentation consistent with Section 3.4 of the RFP.   If indicated, Applicants may respond to a particular item by attaching its response to this Form.

1. Description of the Project that Applicant Desires to Undertake to Accelerate Production or Market Acceptance of Commercially Viable Renewable Energy Products.

2. Description of Renewable Energy Products to be produced or commercialized. 

3. Explain the role of the Project’s Renewable Energy Products, which when deployed, will reduce energy use by up to 50%, relative to current industry standards for comparable traditional or older model products based on the non-renewable energy source being replaced.  Document and quantify the energy savings or replacement that result from use of the Renewable Energy Products by kwh, therms, gallons, BTUs, etc and provide relevant useful data that shows how Renewable Energy Products is superior to traditional or older model products or production sources based on current industry standards.  (Applicant may attach a response not to exceed 3 pages.)

4. Estimate the units of Renewable Energy Products projected to be produced at the Project location for each calendar year through 2025 and the percentage sold to Indiana customers.

(If more than one (1) Renewable Energy Product is projected to be produced at the Project location, Applicants are encouraged to consolidate Items 2 through 4 and to organize by type of Renewable Energy Project in the form of an attachment not to exceed 2 pages.)

5. Explanation of how an award will impact Applicant’s ability to accelerate its commercial activities to meet a realized or projected increase in demand for the Renewable Energy Products. 

6. Description of all products produced at the Project location, percentage of Renewable Energy Products produced or expected to be produced at the Project location in the next five (5) years, percentage of the Applicant’s (and if applicable parent company’s) product portfolio that consists of Renewable Energy Products for the past three (3) years and projections for the next five (5) years.  Provide a description of capital and other company resources that Applicant has invested in the production of Renewable Energy Products including a comparison to the company’s investments over the past three (3) years in other company products.  (Applicant may attach a response not to exceed 2 pages.) 

7. Provide a list of Equipment or systems proposed to be financed through award proceeds.  To the best of Applicant’s ability, itemize the equipment list by its projected cost and function in the commercialization process when installed and placed into operations.  While the Program focuses on the commercialization of Renewable Energy Products, please also identify to the best of Applicant’s ability any energy savings to be realized by Applicant as a result of Applicant’s use of the equipment described itemized by equipment type and, if possible, by a unit of energy saved or replaced (kwh/therms/gallons/BTUs/etc).  If applicable and available, please estimate the cost saving projected as a result of any energy savings realized by the Applicant and any reduction in GHG emissions reduced (CO2 equivalents) or air pollutant emissions resulting from the installation and use of the equipment (per year).  (Final descriptions of equipment will be necessary prior to disbursement of award proceeds). (Applicant may respond by attaching equipment lists but must provide a summary of the information requested for each piece of equipment.)
8. Explanation of need for equipment and description of proposed disbursement of award proceeds for said equipment, including but not limited to, estimated purchase, installation, vendor payment date and desired reimbursement date by Financing proceeds.  (Applicant may consolidate responses to Item 7 & 8 if appropriate.)

9. Description of how the Project will result in the Applicant employing additional new full-time employees (as defined in IC 6-3.1-13-4). (Applicant may refer, if appropriate, to Attachment D.)

10. Explain any local governmental incentives or support offered for the Project and attach all documentation.

11. Describe Applicant’s prior experiences in the Renewable Energy Products industry, including examples evidencing Applicant’s ability to produce Renewable Energy Products whether in Indiana or elsewhere and list all locations of those examples by address. (Applicant may attach a response not to exceed 2 pages).

12. Please provide a total Project budget necessary to achieve the Projects Objectives set forth your Proposal through 2012, how Applicant anticipates funding the Project should the Applicant be awarded funding under this RFP, and describe the Applicant’s current status in securing the funding necessary to complete the Project.  Please indicate where the proposed match for this award is coming from.  Please explain the direct affect on the Project if the Project was awarded a Financing in an amount less than the amount set forth in the Applicant’s Proposal. (Applicant may attach a response not to exceed 3 pages).

13. If the Applicant (or its parent company if applicable) has operations in the State of Indiana, please provide its Indiana Department of Revenue account number, Indiana Department of Workforce Development account number, and a copy of its most recent Merit Rate Notice (State Form 34913).

ATTACHMENT D

INDIANA ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
PAGE  
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